MARKT IRSEE

View of Irsee

The first recorded use of the name Irsee (formerly: “Ursin”)
is in a document from the year 1075. The village developed
from around the Castle of the Margraves of Ronsberg-Ursin.
Around 1182, Margrave Henry (Markgraf Heinrich) gave the
empty castle grounds to settlers from the Eiberger forest
located nearby, who came together to form a monastery in
accordance with the rules set out by Saint Benedict. Due to the
scarcity of water, the monks left the raised area and founded
the Irsee Monastery at its current location around 1195,

On the earlier castle mountain the tower and the chancel of
the medieval St. Stephen’s church are still preserved. Today,
the former parish church is used as the graveyard church.
Adjacent is the so-called “Upper Village”, the oldest part of
Irsee with the Gothic parish house and the brewery’s former
summer cellar.

The former monastery church is located in the foreground on
the left. Following the collapse of the building that had stood
there previously and which dated back to the Middle Ages, it
was newly erected by the Vorarlberger Master Builder Franz
Beer in the years 1699-1702 and finally completed with its
baroque interior until 1754.

The vicar’s house is located somewhat further to the right. It
was built in 1834 using stone from the nave of St. Stephen’s
church that was terminated following the Secularisation. The
vicar’s house had to be rebuilt because the Vicar lived in the
convent building once the monastery had been disbanded.
His move was a pre-condition in order to be allowed to erect a
“Kreis-Irrenanstalt” (district asylum) in the Irsee Monastery.
It was opened as a second contemporary institution of its kind
in Bavaria in 1849 and continued to exist as a branch of the
“Heil- und Pflegeanstalt Kaufbeuren/Irsee” (Psychiatric and
Care Institution Kaufbeuren/Irsee) through to the year 1972.

The former “Herrenwiese” (Gentlemen’s Meadow) of the
Benedictine abbey above the monastery church was sold as
a parish garden after 1802. In 1909 there were plans to build
a new house for “unruly” men and purchased the grounds
for this. The planning was abandoned, however, because the
erection of a further psychiatric institution in Giinzburg had
been decided upon during the same period.

Following the redevelopment of the Irsee monastery to a con-
ference, education and culture centre of the District of Swa-
bia, the grounds were transformed into a meadow orchard in
the late 1990s and planted with native fruit trees.
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Blick auf Irsee

Irsee (friiher: ,,Ursin“) wird erstmals in einer Urkunde aus dem
Jahr 1075 namentlich erwdahnt. Das Dorf entwickelt sich aus einer
Burg der Markgrafen von Ronsberg-Ursin. Um 1182 iiberldsst
Markgraf Heinrich die leerstehende Burganlage Einsiedlern aus
dem nahegelegenen Eiberger Wald, die sich gemaf der Regel
des HI. Benedikt zu einem Konvent zusammenschlieRen. Wegen
Wassermangels verlassen die Monche die Anhdhe und griinden
um 1195 Kloster Irsee am heutigen Standort.

Auf dem friiheren Burgberg sind Turm und Chor der mittelalter-
lichen Kirche St. Stephan erhalten. Die ehemalige Pfarrkirche dient
heute als Friedhofskirche. Daneben liegt das sogenannte ,,Obere
Dorf*, der alteste Teil Irsees mit gotischem Pfarrhof und dem ein-
stigen Sommerkeller der Brauerei.

Im Vordergrund ist links die ehemalige Klosterkirche zu sehen.

Sie wurde nach dem Einsturz des mittelalterlichen Vorgangerbaus
1699—1702 von dem Vorarlberger Baumeister Franz Beer neu errich-
tet und bis 1754 mit ihrer barocken Innenausstattung vollendet.

Etwas weiter rechts steht das Pfarrhaus. Es wurde 1834 aus
Steinen des nach der Sdakularisation abgebrochenen Langhauses
der Kirche St. Stephan erbaut. Das Pfarrhaus musste neu gebaut
werden, da der Pfarrherr nach der Aufhebung des Klosters im
Konventgebaude wohnte. Sein Umzug war eine Voraussetzung, um
in Kloster Irsee eine ,,Kreis-Irrenanstalt einrichten zu konnen. Sie
wurde 1849 als zweite zeitgenodssisch-moderne Anstalt im Konig-
reich Bayern eroffnet und bestand als Nebenstelle der ,,Heil- und
Pflegeanstalt Kaufbeuren/Irsee* bis 1972.

Die ehemalige ,,Herrenwiese® der Benediktinerabtei oberhalb der
Klosterkirche war nach 1802 als Pfarrgarten verkauft worden. 1909
plante man hier den Neubau eines Hauses fiir ,,unruhige® Manner
und kaufte dazu das Geldande an. Die Planung wurde jedoch auf-
gegeben, da etwa zur gleichen Zeit die Errichtung einer weiteren
psychiatrischen Anstalt in Giinzburg beschlossen wurde.

Nach der Umwidmung von Kloster Irsee zum Tagungs-, Bildungs-
und Kulturzentrum des Bezirks Schwaben wurde das Areal in den
1990er Jahren als Streuobstwiese angelegt und mit alten Sorten
heimischer Obstgeholze bepflanzt.




